THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  
In The Court of Appeals

---

APPEAL FROM SUMTER COUNTY  
Court of Common Pleas

R. Ferrell Cothran, Jr., Circuit Court Judge

---

Case No. 2012-CP-43-2030

Appellate Case No.: 2016-000774

---

**RECEIVED**

MAY 24 2017

**SC Court of Appeals**

Win Myat.....Appellant,

v.

Tuomey Healthcare System.....Respondent.

---

**APPELLANT'S FINAL BRIEF**

---

William R. Padget (SC Bar No. 72579)  
Francis "Brink" Hinson (SC Bar No. 74917)

FINKEL LAW FIRM LLC  
1201 Main Street, Suite 1800  
Post Office Box 1799  
Columbia, SC 29202  
(803) 765-2935  
*Attorneys for Appellant Win Myat*

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  
In The Court of Appeals

---

## STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

WHETHER THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN APPLYING THE CHARITABLE CAP, THEREBY REDUCING THE JURY'S VERDICT OF \$2,500,000.00 TO \$300,000.00, AND, IF SO, FOR ANY ONE OF THE FOLLOWING ISSUES, THE JURY'S VERDICT SHOULD BE REINSTATED:

- I. WHETHER THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN PERMITTING THE RESPONDENT TO BELATEDLY AMEND ITS ANSWER TO ASSERT A NEW AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE, *I.E.* THE PROTECTIONS OF THE SOLICITATION OF CHARITABLE FUNDS ACT, ON THE FIRST DAY OF THE SCHEDULED DATE CERTAIN TRIAL, AFTER NEARLY THREE YEARS OF LITIGATION, AND WHERE APPELLANT WAS SUBSTANTIALLY PREJUDICED BY THE TARDY AMENDMENT.
  
- II. WHETHER THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN ALLOWING THE RESPONDENT TO REOPEN ITS CASE AND OFFER NEW EVIDENCE NEVER PREVIOUSLY DISCLOSED IN SUPPORT OF ITS CHARITABLE AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE AFTER THE DEFENSE HAD RESTED AND AFTER PLAINTIFF HAD MOVED FOR DIRECTED VERDICT ON THE CHARITABLE DEFENSE AND WHERE APPELLANT WAS SUBSTANTIALLY PREJUDICED.
  
- III. WHETHER THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN CONCLUDING THAT THE RESPONDENT TUOMEY WAS QUALIFIED TO RECEIVE THE PROTECTIONS OF THE SOLICITATION OF CHARITABLE FUNDS ACT, S.C. CODE ANN. § 33-56-170 & 180.

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE

In July of 2011, Appellant Win Myat (“Appellant” or “Dr. Myat”) was seriously injured when he fell as a result of a liquid on the floor of a hallway at Tuomey Hospital in Sumter, South Carolina. Dr. Myat initiated this premises liability action by the filing of a summons and complaint on October 15, 2012.<sup>1</sup> Appellant filed an amended complaint on November 5, 2012, to properly identify the Defendant as Tuomey Regional Medical Center (hereinafter “Respondent” or “Tuomey”).<sup>2</sup> Respondent filed its answer on January 16, 2013, asserting the following defenses: (1) general denial; (2) statutory employee defense under the Worker’s Compensation Act; (3) comparative negligence; and (4) unavoidable accident.<sup>3</sup> Respondent Tuomey did not plead the affirmative defense of the Solicitation of Charitable Funds Act, specifically S.C. Code Ann. § 33-56-170 and S.C. Code Ann. § 33-56-180 (hereinafter “the SCFA”), as a defense. For several years thereafter, the parties participated in discovery and entered into several scheduling orders setting forth deadlines for the conduct of discovery, disclosure of witnesses, the filing of motions, and to conduct mediation. On November 2, 2014, the parties entered into an Amended Consent Scheduling Order, which held that all motions were to be filed on or before February 15, 2015.<sup>4</sup> On April 30, 2015, the parties entered into a Consent Order setting the case for date certain trial beginning on Monday, August 24, 2015.<sup>5</sup>

On Friday, August 21, 2015, more than half a year after all motions were ordered to have been filed, and just one business day before trial was to set begin, Tuomey filed a Motion to Amend Its Answer to assert the protections of the SCFA.<sup>6</sup> On the Friday that the Motion to

---

<sup>1</sup> See R. pp. 0024-0025; Complaint.

<sup>2</sup> See R. p. 0032, line 5; Amended Complaint.

<sup>3</sup> See R. pp. 0038-0040; Answer.

<sup>4</sup> See R. p. 0001, lines 8-11; Scheduling Order dated November 2, 2014.

<sup>5</sup> See R. p. 0003; Order Setting Date Certain Trial dated April 30, 2015.

<sup>6</sup> See R. pp. 0041-0043; Respondent’s Motion to Amend dated August 21, 2015.

Amend was filed, but prior to the filing of the motion, Respondent's counsel initiated a phone call to the trial judge and Appellant's counsel seeking leave to amend, and during the call the trial judge indicated a willingness to allow the amendment over Appellant's objection. Appellant's counsel requested that a motion be filed and a hearing conducted on the record in accordance with the rules.<sup>7</sup> The Motion to Amend was heard by the trial court the following business day (Monday, August 24, 2015), and, over Appellant's objection and claims of legal prejudice, the trial court gave leave to Tuomey to make a last-minute amendment to its pleading. On August 24, 2016, Respondent Tuomey filed its Amended Answer, now asserting the protections of the SCFA, more specifically the damages cap.<sup>8</sup> Due to a scheduling conflict with a defense witness, the trial of the case began the following week, starting on Monday, August 30, 2015.

The premises liability case was tried to verdict over the course of three days. On the third day of trial, after opting to focus solely on its liability defenses, the Respondent rested its case having put up zero evidence of its charitable status to support its newly plead affirmative defense.<sup>9</sup> Appellant moved for a directed verdict on the charitable defense, reciting to the trial court, and to the Respondent, all that Tuomey was required, but had failed, to prove.<sup>10</sup> Having heard Appellant's recitation of Tuomey's deficiencies, thereafter, the Respondent sought to reopen the evidence to put up testimony of its charitable status, proffering the testimony of witnesses who were not previously disclosed and documents that were not previously

---

<sup>7</sup> R. p 0996; Transcript of August 24, 2015 Motion Hearing p. 2 (Respondent's counsel referencing Friday call). R. p. 1729, ¶ 12; Affidavit of David Holler ¶ 12 (referencing call to trial judge on Friday afternoon). The Motion was filed at 4:14 pm, this call was at around 12:30pm.

<sup>8</sup> R. p. 1892; Amended Answer dated August 24, 2015.

<sup>9</sup> R. p. 1529; Trial Transcript p. 485.

<sup>10</sup> R. p. 1531; Trial Transcript p. 487.

produced.<sup>11</sup> The trial court opted to hold the matter in abeyance and to proceed with closing arguments and the jury charge. Both parties completed their closing arguments and the jury was charged on the law. During the deliberations, Tuomey again sought leave to have the court reopen its case.<sup>12</sup> The court and both parties then received word that the jury had reached a verdict. Just before publishing the verdict, presumably with knowledge of the result and without further argument, the trial court granted Respondent Tuomey's motion to reopen its case and to put up additional facts in support of the recently pled affirmative defense.<sup>13</sup> The jury found in favor of Appellant and awarded \$2,500,000.00 in damages against the Respondent. The trial court gave the parties ten days to file post-trial motions.

On September 4, 2015, Appellant served a motion to reconsider the granting of leave to Respondent to Amend Its Answer.<sup>14</sup> On September 10, 2015, Appellant served a motion to reconsider the reopening of the defense case.<sup>15</sup> On September 9, 2015, Appellant served a Reply to the newly filed Amended Answer, specifically denying that Respondent Tuomey was entitled to the protections of the SCFA because Tuomey was no longer a "charitable organization" as defined in S.C. Code § 33-56-180. Appellant specifically sought declaratory judgment that Respondent Tuomey was not entitled to the protections of limited liability under the SCFA.<sup>16</sup>

Respondent Tuomey filed its Post-Trial Motions for JNOV and for a new trial on September 14, 2015.<sup>17</sup> The trial court conducted a hearing on all post-trial motions on March 8,

---

<sup>11</sup> R. p. 1533; Trial Transcript p. 489.

<sup>12</sup> R. p. 1606; Trial Transcript p. 562.

<sup>13</sup> R. p. 1612; Trial Transcript p. 568.

<sup>14</sup> R. pp. 0044-0048; Motion to Reconsider Granting of Leave to Amend.

<sup>15</sup> R. pp. 0052-0055; Motion to Reconsider Reopening of Defense Case.

<sup>16</sup> See R. pp. 0049-0051; Reply pp. 1-3.

<sup>17</sup> See R. pp. 0056-0082; Respondent's Post-Trial Motions.

2016. On April 7, 2016, the trial court entered an order denying Respondent's motion for JNOV and for a new trial, but reduced the judgment to \$300,000.00, finding that Tuomey had met its burden of proving the affirmative defense and had shown that the organization qualified for the protections of the SCFA. The Order also denied Appellant's motion to reconsider the granting of the amendment and denied Appellant's motion to reconsider the decision to permit Respondent to reopen its case.<sup>18</sup>

On April 14, 2016, Appellant filed his notice of appeal of the trial court's April 7, 2016 Order. This appeal followed. Respondent took no cross appeal.

### **FACTS**

#### **Dr. Win Myat and His Fall**

In July of 2011, prior to the fall and injury giving rise to this action, Appellant Win Myat, M.D, was a thirty-nine year old infectious disease specialist practicing medicine in Sumter, South Carolina. He had immigrated to the United States from Burma and worked his way through college and medical school, completing an internal medicine residency and a fellowship in infectious diseases. He first began practicing medicine in Florence, South Carolina, and subsequently brought his infectious disease expertise to the medical community in Sumter, South Carolina, which, at the time, had no infectious disease specialist.<sup>19</sup> In Sumter, Dr. Myat served three professional roles: (1) he was employed by his private medical practice, Palmetto Infectious Disease; (2) he was employed by Respondent Tuomey as the Medical Director of Infectious Disease; (3) and he was employed by the Sumter Family Health Center, a clinic in Sumter that treats HIV patients.<sup>20</sup> His efforts at his three jobs produced substantial income.<sup>21</sup> At

---

<sup>18</sup> R. pp. 0005-0021; Order dated April 7, 2016.

<sup>19</sup> R. pp. 1265-1274; Trial Transcript at pp. 220-229.

<sup>20</sup> R. pp. 1274-1275; Trial Transcript pp. 229-230.

the time he suffered the fall giving rise to this case, Dr. Myat was working in his capacity as a physician for his private medical practice.<sup>22</sup> While rounding on patients at approximately 5:30 AM on July 6, 2011, Dr. Myat slipped on a puddle of liquid near the nurse's station of Unit 3 South at the Respondent hospital. He suffered a fractured patella and ruptured patella tendon.<sup>23</sup> His injuries left him with a severe and painful limp and unable to continue his medical practice.<sup>24</sup> Dr. Myat filed this case against Respondent alleging that employees of Respondent Hospital created the dangerous condition that caused his fall.<sup>25</sup>

**Tuomey's Charitable Status, the Drakeford Case,  
Its Reporting to the IRS, and Its Winding Down of Its Affairs**

At the time of the filing of this case, Respondent Tuomey operated a 300 bed hospital in Sumter, South Carolina. As has been well publicized and established by United States ex rel. Drakeford v. Tuomey Healthcare Sys., Inc., 976 F. Supp. 2d 776, 784 (D.S.C. 2013) aff'd., 792 F.3d 364 (4th Cir. 2015) (hereinafter "Drakeford" or "the Drakeford case"), the Respondent has spent the last decade in litigation with the federal government.<sup>26</sup> In Drakeford, Tuomey was found to have violated the Stark Law (anti-kickback laws) and the False Claims Act (antifraud laws) due to its improper and illegal contracts and arrangements with physicians employed by

---

<sup>21</sup> R. p. 1318; Trial Transcript p. 273 (Appellant's income averaged \$47,024 per month in the 3 years prior to his fall).

<sup>22</sup> R. p. 1286; Trial Transcript p. 241.

<sup>23</sup> R. p. 1291; Trial Transcript p. 246.

<sup>24</sup> R. p. 1309; Trial Transcript p. 264 (description of limp). R. pp. 1312-1313; Trial Transcript pp. 267-68 (unable to continue work).

<sup>25</sup> See generally R. pp. 0032-0037; Amended Complaint.

<sup>26</sup> See R. pp. 0337-0338; Tuomey Rule 30(b)(6) Transcript at pp. 25-26 (confirming that Respondent is same entity as defendant in Drakeford case). The entirety of the Tuomey Rule 30(b)(6) transcript was submitted to the trial court for review at the March 8, 2016 hearing. See R. p. 1657; March 8, 2016 Hearing Transcript p. 32.

the hospital.<sup>27</sup> The District Court entered a judgment against Tuomey that, including penalties and fines, totaled \$237,454,195.00. That judgment has been affirmed by the Fourth Circuit Court of Appeals.

More specifically, in October of 2005, Michael Drakeford, M.D., filed a *qui tam* action against Tuomey. Dr. Drakeford and the United States of America alleged that the compensation packages that Respondent paid some of its key physicians were in excess of the fair market value for their services and were thus in violation of the anti-kickback provisions of the Stark Law and antifraud laws of the False Claims Act.<sup>28</sup> On March 29, 2010, a federal jury returned a verdict in favor of the United States, finding that Tuomey had violated the Stark Law but had not violated the False Claims Act.<sup>29</sup> The District Court granted a new trial on the issue of the FCA and issued an order finding that: (1) pursuant to the jury verdict, Tuomey violated the Stark Law; and (2) Tuomey submitted claims in violation of the Stark Law, and the United States paid those improper claims to Tuomey in the amount of \$44,888,651.00. The Court concluded that the United States was entitled to judgment in its favor as to its equitable claims in that amount.

Tuomey appealed that Order, and, in 2012, the Fourth Circuit Court of Appeals remanded the case to District Court instructing:

[T]he jury must determine on remand whether the contracts took into account the volume or value of referrals. If it so finds, the jury must further determine whether Tuomey could bear its burden of proof with respect to the indirect compensation arrangement exception. Finally, if the jury finds that the contracts created a financial relationship—as defined by the Stark Law—between Tuomey and the physicians, it must determine

---

<sup>27</sup> Specifically, the government claimed and proved that “payment[s] were unlawful under the Stark Law, 42 U.S.C. § 1395m, and thus violative of the False Claims Act (FCA), 31 U.S.C. §§ 3729 et seq.” U.S. ex rel. Drakeford v. Tuomey, 976 F. Supp. 2d 776, 780 (D.S.C. 2013) aff’d., 792 F.3d 364 (4th Cir. 2015).

<sup>28</sup> Specifically, the United States contended that 14 employment contracts with certain physicians were improper and violated federal law.

<sup>29</sup> R. pp. 1731-1732; March 2010 Drakeford Jury Verdict Form.

the number and value of claims Tuomey presented to Medicare for payment of facility fees resulting from the facility component referrals made by the physicians, and for which it received payment.

United States ex rel. Drakeford v. Tuomey Healthcare Sys., Inc., 675 F.3d 394, 405 (4th Cir. 2012).

The case proceeded to trial a second time, and, in May of 2013, the jury returned a verdict that Tuomey had violated both the Stark Law and the False Claims Act. The jury found that Tuomey had submitted 21,730 patient claims in violation of the False Claims Act, and that the value of these claims totaled \$39,313,065.00. Applying statutory penalties for the antifraud violations, in October of 2013, the District Court issued a judgment against Tuomey, under the False Claims Act, in the amount of \$237,454,195.00.<sup>30</sup> Tuomey appealed but was unsuccessful, and on July 2015, the Fourth Circuit Court of Appeals issued an order affirming the District Court's decision and the nearly quarter of a billion dollar judgment against Tuomey.<sup>31</sup>

During this time period, Respondent Tuomey's reporting of the findings in the Drakeford case to the Internal Revenue Service was less than forthright. Since the time the Drakeford litigation began, Tuomey's sole means of communication with the IRS has been through its annual Form 990 filings.<sup>32</sup> Tuomey's Form 990 filings<sup>33</sup> for 2010, 2011, 2012, and 2013 evidence Tuomey's shameful withholding of information from the IRS and outright deception as to the findings in the Drakeford case.

For example, Tuomey's 2010 Form 990 Filing (which, as a result of extensions, was not

---

<sup>30</sup> See R. pp. 0694-0709; Tuomey 30(b)(6) Depo Transcript, Ex.8 (Drakeford District Court Order).

<sup>31</sup> See R. pp. 0710-0737; Tuomey 30(b)(6) Depo Transcript, Ex. 9 (Drakeford 4<sup>th</sup> Circuit Opinion).

<sup>32</sup> R. p. 1675; March 8, 2016 Hearing Transcript p. 50. R. pp. 0321-0322; Tuomey Rule 30(b)(6) Depo Transcript pp. 9-10.

<sup>33</sup> R. pp. 0374-0680; Tuomey Rule 30(b)(6) Depo Transcript, Ex. 2, 3, 4, 5.

provided to the IRS until August 14, 2012, a time which was after the first federal jury had specifically found that Tuomey had violated the Stark Law) was disingenuous. In this disclosure to the IRS, buried on page 86 of 94 Tuomey represented the following:

The System is currently a defendant in a civil suit brought by a physician on its medical staff under the *qui tam* provisions of the federal False Claims Act ("FCA"). The suit alleges that the System violated the FCA as a result of part-time employment contracts between the System and certain other physicians on its medical staff. The United States Government intervened in the suit. After a three week trial in federal court, the jury rendered a verdict that the System did not violate the FCA. However, subsequent to that verdict, the court granted judgment for the Government on its equitable restitution claims in the amount of \$44,888,651. The court also granted the Government a new trial on its FCA claims. The System has appealed the trial court's equitable judgment to the Fourth Circuit Court of Appeals. The trial court stayed its judgment pending appeal but required the System to place \$49,384,687 into escrow pending appeal. The trial court also stayed its new trial order pending the outcome of the appeal. On January 20, 2012 Tuomey presented its oral arguments to support its appeal before a three judge panel of the Fourth Circuit Court of Appeals.<sup>34</sup>

This disclosure wholly omits that the *qui tam* lawsuit alleged that Tuomey violated the Stark Law's anti-kickback provisions and that the federal jury had specifically found the hospital to be in violation of the Stark Law.<sup>35</sup> Omission of such key facts is tantamount to fraud. Tuomey's statement to the IRS is a dishonest mischaracterization of the jury's finding, portraying the verdict as some sort of innocuous equitable restitution matter and gives absolutely no indication that Tuomey was found to have violated federal anti-kickback laws. Tuomey admits it failed to disclose the adverse jury verdict to the Internal Revenue Service.<sup>36</sup>

Compared to its 2010 Form 990, Tuomey's disclosure to the IRS in its Form 990 for 2011 (which, due to extensions, was not filed until 2012) was equally as deceptive and devoid of critically important information regarding the 2010 Drakeford jury findings:

---

<sup>34</sup> R. pp. 0376; Tuomey Rule 30(b)(6) Depo Transcript, Ex. 2, Form 990 for 2010, p. 86.

<sup>35</sup> See R. p. 1731; 2010 Drakeford Jury Verdict Form p. 1

<sup>36</sup> R. pp. 0327-0328; Tuomey Rule 30(b)(6) Transcript pp. 15-16.

The System is currently a defendant in a civil suit brought by a physician on its medical staff under the qui tam provisions of the federal False Claims Act ("FCA"). The suit alleges that the System violated the FCA as a result of part-time employment contracts between the System and certain other physicians on its medical staff. The United States Government intervened in the suit. After a three week trial in federal court, the jury rendered a verdict that the System did not violate the FCA. However, subsequent to that verdict, the court granted judgment for the Government on its equitable restitution claims in the amount of \$44,888,651. The court also granted the Government a new trial on its FCA claims based on a perceived error made by the court during the trial. The System appealed the trial court's equitable judgment to the Fourth Circuit Court of Appeals. On March 20, 2012, the Fourth Circuit Court of Appeals reversed the trial court's equitable judgment. The \$44,888,651 plus interest was returned to Tuomey. The case was remanded to federal district court in Columbia, SC for a retrial on all issues. The case is set for retrial for April 16, 2013. It is expected to be a four to five week trial.

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