IN THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In the Court of Common Pleas

APPEAL FROM SUMTER COUNTY
Court of Common Pleas

R. Ferrell Cothran, Jr., Circuit Court Judge

Case No. 2012-CP-43-2030

Appellate Case No. 2016-000774

RECEIVED

JAN 31 2017

SC Court of Appeals

Win Myat.....Appellant,

v.

Tuomey Healthcare System.....Respondent.

RESPONDENT'S INITIAL BRIEF

DAVID C. HOLLER
Federal ID: 5608
ATTORNEY FOR RESPONDENT
126 North Main Street
Post Office Box 580
Sumter, South Carolina 29151
(803) 778-2471

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

In *Equal Employment Opportunity Commission v. E.I. DuPont de Nemours and Co.*, the court admitted into evidence printouts of postings on the website of the United States Census Bureau as self-authenticating under Rule 902(5). 2004 WL 2347556 (E.D.La. Oct.18, 2004). Given the frequency with which official publications from government agencies are relevant to litigation and the increasing tendency for such agencies to have their own websites, Rule 902(5) provides a very useful method of authenticating these publications. When combined with the public records exception to the hearsay rule, Rule 803(8), these official publications posted on government agency websites should be admitted into evidence easily.”; the court extensively discussed the authentication and admissibility of electronically stored information;

citing *Paralyzed Veterans of America v. McPherson*, *supra*, as follows:

Federal courts consider records from government websites to be self-authenticating under Rule 902(5). See, e.g., *Estate of Gonzales v. Hickman*, No. ED CV 05-660 MMM (RCx), 2007 WL 3237727, *2 n. 3 (C.D.Cal. May 30, 2007) (unreported) (finding report issued by the Inspector General of the State of California on the Office of the Inspector General's website to be self-authentic); *Lorraine v. Markel Am. Ins. Co.*, 241 F.R.D. 534, 551 (D. Md. 2007) (“Given the frequency with which official publications from government agencies are relevant to litigation and the increasing tendency for such agencies to have their own websites, Rule 902(5) provides a very useful method for authenticating these publications. When combined with the public records exception to the hearsay rule, Rule 803(8), these official publications posted on government agency websites should be admitted into evidence easily”); *United States ex rel. Parikh v. Premera Blue Cross*, No. C01-0476P, slip op., 2006 WL 2841998, *4 (W.D.Wash. Sep.29, 2006) (determining documents found on government websites to be self-authenticating);

Hispanic Broad. Corp. v. Educ. Media Found., No. CV027134CAS (AJWX), 2003 WL 22867633, *5 n. 5 (C.D.Cal. Oct.30, 2003) (unreported) (holding, “exhibits which consist of records from government websites, such as the FCC website are self-authenticating”).

...

Moreover, “[a] trial court may presume that public records are authentic and trustworthy. The burden of establishing otherwise falls on the opponent of the evidence, who must come ‘forward with enough negative factors to persuade a court that a report should not be admitted.’ ” *Gilbrook v. City of Westminster*, 177 F.3d 839, 858 (9th Cir. 1999) (quoting *Johnson v. City of Pleasanton*, 982 F.2d 350, 352 (9th Cir.1992)). Bowen points to nothing in particular in challenging the authenticity or trustworthiness of what are printouts of her official state website. Defendant Bowen's objection to the printouts is accordingly OVERRULED.”;

As cited by Judge Childs and Judge Herlong, *Williams v. Long*, 585 F.Supp.2d 279, 686–89, 688 n. 4 (D. Md. 2008), better describes the self authentication features of a government website:

“The printed webpage from the Maryland Judiciary Case Search website is self-authenticating under Rule 902(5) for the reasons discussed above. First and foremost, the Maryland Judiciary is a branch of the Maryland State Government; therefore, any online “official publication” issued by the Maryland Judiciary would be self-authenticating. See *Fed.R.Evid.* 902(1), (5). Second, the URL on the top of the printed webpage identifies that the results are in fact from the website. Third, the first page features a caption, stating, “Maryland Judiciary Case Search Results,” and the next page states, “District Court of Maryland.” Accordingly, there is no doubt that these results were published on the website of a public authority. Thus, they are self-authenticating.”

As cited by the trial court order of Judge David C. Norton in *Koon v Toal*, 2015 WL 6466441 [C/A No. 4:15-cv-3357 DCN], signed October 26, 2015, n. 1:

This Court takes judicial notice of materials in court records from Plaintiff's prior court proceedings. See *Fletcher v. Bryan*, 175 F.2d 716, 717 (4th Cir. 1949); see *Aloe Creme Laboratories, Inc. v. Francine Co.*, 425 F.2d 1295, 1296 (5th Cir. 1970)(a federal court

may take judicial notice of the contents of its own records); see also *In Re Katrina Canal Breaches Consol. Litig.*, 533 F. Supp. 2d 615, 631-33 & nn.14-15 (E.D. La. 2008)(collecting cases indicating that federal courts may take judicial notice of governmental websites, including court records); *Williams v. Long*, 585 F. Supp. 2d 679, 686-88 & n.4 (D. Md. 2008) (collecting cases indicating that postings on government websites are inherently authentic or self-authenticating); See also *Colonial Penn Ins. Co. v. Coil*, 887 F. 2d 1236, 1239 (4th Cir. 1989) (federal courts may take judicial notice of proceedings in other courts if those proceedings have a direct relation to matters at issue);

Government websites are often the subject of judicial notice. “The Court takes judicial notice of the publicly available information on the IRS website.” *Linchpins of Liberty v. United States*, 71 F.Supp.3d 236, FN 7 (D.C. DC 2014); “the Court has taken judicial notice of this description on the IRS website.” *Irish v Ferguson*, 970 F.Supp.2d 317, FN 47 (M.D. Penn. 2013); *Arizona Libertarian Party v Reagan*, – F.3d –, 2015 WL 4664606 (9th Cir. April 24, 2015)(“We may take judicial notice of ‘official information posted on a governmental website, the accuracy of which [is] undisputed.’ *Dudum v. Arntz*, 640 F.3d 1098, 1101 n. 6 (9th Cir. 2011) (citing *Daniels–Hall v. Nat’l Educ. Ass’n*, 629 F.3d 998–99 (9th Cir. 2010)).”); *Swindol v Aurora Flight Sciences Corp*, – F.2d –, 2015 WL 5090578 (5th Cir. August 28, 2015)(5th Cir. Court of Appeals *sua sponte* moved to amend complaint to establish diversity jurisdiction holding: “We follow *Kaufman* to the extent it supports the taking of judicial notice of public documents establishing Aurora’s citizenship.” citing Rule 201(b), *Federal Rules of Evidence*, which mirrors Rule 201, *South Carolina Rules of Evidence.*); *Johnson v United States Steel Corporation*, – Cal. Rptr.3d –, 2015 WL 5120242 (CA Ct. App. 1st District, September 1, 2015)(“Court of Appeals

would take judicial notice of government report on toxicological profile for benzene.”); *Securities and Exchange Commission v Alexander*, – F.Supp.3d, 2015, 2015 WL 4397421, FN. 3 (Dist. Ct., NDCA July 17, 2015)(“The Court may also take judicial notice of the SEC’s attestations that a search of SEC records and files do not reveal any registration documents related to this action. (citation omitted) The Court therefore GRANTS Plaintiff’s request for judicial notice.”); *Clements v Sanofi-Aventis, U.S., Inc.*, – F.Supp.3d –, FN 2, 2015 WL 3648911 (D.C. NJ June 11, 2015)(judicial notice of FDA approvals of drug Sculptra “are also matters of public record, appropriate for judicial notice under FRE 201”); *U.S., ex rel. Modglin v DJO Global, Inc.*, – F.Supp.3d –, 2015 WL 4111709 (C.D. CA May 8, 2015)(“Under Rule 201, the court can take judicial notice of “[p]ublic records and government documents available from reliable sources on the Internet,” such as websites run by governmental agencies.” ... citing *Paralyzed Veterans of Am. v McPherson*, No. C 06–4670, 2008 WL 4183981, *5 (N.D.Cal. Sept. 8, 2008) (“Information on government agency websites has often been treated as properly subject to judicial notice”). “The court therefore grants defendants’ request for judicial notice.”);

D. JUDICIAL NOTICE MAY BE TAKEN AT ANY STAGE OF THE PROCEEDING. SOUTH CAROLINA EVID. RULE 201.

Tuomey respectfully submits that judicial notice of Tuomey’s 501c3 status, as established by the Internal Revenue Service, and publically available through government websites, may be taken at any stage of the proceedings. SOUTH CAROLINA EVID. RULE 201. Evidentiary rule governing judicial notice allows a court to take judicial notice at any stage in a proceeding; therefore, a court may take judicial notice at the summary judgment stage. *Ochana v. Flores*, 199 F.Supp.2d 817, affirmed 347 F.3d 266 (N.D. Ill. 2002); Judicial notice may be taken at any

stage of proceeding, including on appeal, as long as it is not unfair to party to do so and does not undermine trial court's fact-finding authority. *In re Indian Palms Associates, Ltd.*, 61 F.3d 197 (3rd Cir. (N.J.) 1995); Where adequate information is available for taking of judicial notice, an appellate court should use such information. *U.S. v. Gonzalez*, 442 F.2d 698, certiorari denied 92 S.Ct. 146, 404 U.S. 845, 30 L.Ed.2d 81. (2nd Cir. (N.Y.) 1970).

E. S.C. CODE § 33-56-180 PREDICATES IMMUNITY ON 501C3 STATUS

The Charitable Funds Act provides an immunity for charitable organizations as defined in Section 170, which provides:

For purposes of Section 33-56-180:

- (1) "Charitable organization" means any organization, institution, association, society, or corporation which is exempt from taxation pursuant to Section 501(c)(3) or 501(d) of Title 26 of the United States Code, as amended.

F. SECRETARY OF TREASURY HAS EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION TO DETERMINE 501C3 STATUS

The Secretary of the Treasury has exclusive jurisdiction to challenge Tuomey's 501c3 status. See 26 U.S.C.A. § 7428 (entitled "Declaratory judgments relating to status and classification of organizations under section 501(c)(3), etc.") provides, *inter alia*:

- (a) Creation of remedy.--In a case of actual controversy involving--
 - (1) a determination by the Secretary--
 - (A) with respect to the initial qualification or continuing qualification of an organization as an organization described in section 501(c)(3) which is exempt from tax under section 501(a)....
 - (2) a failure by the Secretary to make a determination with respect to an issue referred to in paragraph (1), upon the filing of an appropriate pleading, the United States Tax Court, the United States Court of Federal Claims, or the district court

of the United States for the District of Columbia may make a declaration with respect to such initial qualification or continuing qualification or with respect to such initial classification or continuing classification....

(b) Limitations.--

(1) Petitioner.--A pleading may be filed under this section only by the organization the qualification or classification of which is at issue.

“This section governing declaratory judgments relating to status and classification of organizations under section 501 of this title defining “charitable organization,” prescribes an exception to usual rule that United States Court of Claims does not have jurisdiction of declaratory judgment actions. *Northern California Central Services, Inc. v. U.S.*, 591 F.2d 620, 219 Ct.Cl. 60 (1979). See also, 28 *U.S.C.A.* § 2201 (entitled “Creation of remedy”), provides:

In a case of actual controversy within its jurisdiction, except with respect to Federal taxes other than actions brought under section 7428 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, ... any court of the United States, upon the filing of an appropriate pleading, may declare the rights and other legal relations of any interested party seeking such declaration, whether or not further relief is or could be sought. Any such declaration shall have the force and effect of a final judgment or decree and shall be reviewable as such.

Tuomey respectfully submits that the trial court lack jurisdiction to grant relief under tax law except as provided in 26 *U.S.C.A.* § 7428 and only at the request of the tax entity, or as the statute defines the person to be a Petitioner. In this case, Tuomey would be the petitioner, and only Tuomey could challenge the Secretary’s determination in the district court. The Treasury Secretary alone has the standing to revoke or rescind Tuomey’s 501c3 tax exempt status. *In re*

Heritage Village Church and Missionary Fellowship, Inc. v. United States, 87 B.R. 401 (1988); *Bob Jones University v United States*, 461 U.S. 574 (1983); An “assessment” of taxes is a formal, discrete act with specific legal consequences. The IRS makes an assessment of unpaid taxes only after a notice of deficiency is sent to the taxpayer. *In re Carlson*, 580 F.2d 1365, 1368 (10th Cir. 1978). See 28 U.S.C.A. § 1346(a)(1)(district court has original jurisdiction of “any civil action against the United States for the recovery of any internal-revenue tax alleged to have been erroneously or illegally assessed or collected....”); 26 U.S.C.A. § 6303 (“Notice and demand for tax”); *Conway v Commissioner of Internal Revenue*, 137 T.C. 209 (2011).

The ability to challenge the I.R.S. determination is jurisdictional. 28 U.S.C. § 1491(a)(1) (“The United States Court of Federal Claims shall have jurisdiction to render judgment upon any claim against the United States founded either upon the Constitution, or any Act of Congress or any regulation of an executive department, or upon any express or implied contract with the United States, or for liquidated or unliquidated damages in cases not sounding in tort.”);

Other state courts have concluded they lack jurisdiction to challenge such a claim. “Claims against the United States were not raised and could not have been raised in the New York lawsuits because New York State Courts do not have jurisdiction to hear issues of federal tax law.”, *Imprimis Investors LLC v. U.S.*, 83 Fed.Cl. 46, 66 (U.S.F.C. 2008);

Tuomey respectfully submits that its 501c3 tax exempt status is a matter of public record and available from the Internal Revenue Services government website; <http://apps.irs.gov/app/eos/>. Tuomey’s 501c3 tax exempt status has been available on the IRS website since before the date of Plaintiff’s injury; See generally, Donald L. Korb, Chief Counsel, Internal Revenue Service 1965 - present, *The Four R's Revisited: Regulations, Rulings, Reliance*,

and Retroactivity in the 21st Century: A view from within, 46 Duq. L. Rev. 323 (Spring 2008);

As a 501c3 tax exempt organization, Tuomey files an IRS Form 990 (Return of Organization Exempt From Income Taxation) annually, and the IRS has widely distributed this information to the public through the internet since year 2002, a time before Plaintiff's date of injury; See <https://bulk.resource.org/irs.gov/eo/readme.html>; Under federal law, Tuomey is required to provide an IRS Form 990 to any person upon request; See <https://bulk.resource.org/irs.gov/eo/doc/about.html>;

In addition to receiving this information from the IRS, multiple non-profit and for-profit organizations provide IRS Form 990's to the public through the internet: See, Eg. <http://nccs.urban.org/>; <https://www.citizenaudit.org/>; <http://www.guidestar.org/Home.aspx>; and <http://www.metmuseum.org/about-the-museum/annual-reports>

Conclusion

Tuomey respectfully submits the trial court acted within his discretion to allow its amended answer to assert the charitable cap. Tuomey's discovery responses and affidavit of counsel clearly established Myat had actual knowledge of the statutory cap during the litigation. Myat offered no evidence to the trial judge that he did not know of the charitable cap. Myat offered no evidence that he detrimentally relied upon Tuomey's original answer. Myat failed at the hearing and on appeal to show any prejudice from the amendment and the trial court should be affirmed.

The trial court properly allowed Tuomey to re-open in case in chief on the issue of 501c3 status and the charitable cap. Myat was allowed ample discovery prior to a hearing on those issues. Myat has failed to show any prejudice as a result of reopening of the evidence.

Accordingly, the trial court's decision to reopen the evidence should be affirmed.

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